
Next Meeting: February 10, 2022

The mission of the Lexington & Fayette County Parking Authority is to provide, maintain and operate adequate, high-quality, customer-focused public 
parking and encourage economic growth for the benefit of the residents, businesses, and visitors of Lexington & Fayette County 

January 13, 2022 Board Meeting Agenda

I. Call to Order/Welcome of Guests Frazier

II. Approval of Minutes of December 2021 LPA Board Meeting Frazier
Board Action Required

III. Update on ED Activities Means
a. Executive Director Reports
b. Operational Reports
c. COVID-19 Update

IV. Approval of LPA and LEXPARK November 2021 Financial Reports Means
and Schrader Commercial Reports

Board Action Required

V. Present REEF Internal Audits Doering

VI. On-Street Means
a. Curbside Spaces/Outdoor Expansion Areas Update

VII. Off-Street (Garages) Trammell
a. Garage Updates
b. Security Updates

VIII. Downtown Lexington Partnership Updates Sweeney

IX. Visit Lex Updates Schickel

X. Comments Frazier
Comments from Commissioners/Advisory Committee Members

XI. Closed Session per KRS 61.810 Frazier



Lexington & Fayette County Parking Authority               
859-233-PARK (7275)      
www.lexpark.org

    

Lexington & Fayette County Parking Authority

Board Meeting Minutes
December 9, 2021

Called to order:10:00 a.m. by James Frazier, Chair

Location: ZOOM Meeting

Voting Members:        Kenton Ball
Dee Dee Harbut
Thomas Pettit
Ashley Simpson
Trish Vertuca

Advisory Board: Liza Betz, Failte
Terry Sweeney, DLP

Executive Director:     Gary Means

LFCPA Staff:              Kara Pearson, Linden Smith, and Edward Trammell
Lexington & Fayette County Parking Authority

Guests:                     Mark Doering, Reef
Chris Goodson, Reef
Justin Hubbard, DDAF

Item 1 Call to Order:
Chairman James Frazier noted the attendance of the members; hence quorum was reached, and he called the 
meeting to order.

Item 2 Approval of November 2021 Minutes
Mr. Petit makes a motion to approve the minutes as presented.  Ms. Harbut seconds.  The vote was unanimous, and 
the motion carried.  

Item 3 Update on ED Activities
A.  Executive Director Report
Mr. Means presents the Executive Director Report.  Food for Fines is ongoing.  A seven-year-old citation was paid
and one customer brought in 120 cans of food.  Mr. Means attended the IPMI conference in Tampa.

B.  Operational Reports
Mr. Means presents the operational reports. Telephone inquiries decreased in November.  Safety and loading 
zone violations increased. Over 500,000 transactions have been completed this fiscal year.  The value of
citations paid taken as a yearly average is moving closer to 2019 measures.  The number of events increased.  
Length of stay in garages increased over the previous month.  

C.  COVID-19 Update
Mr. Means goes over some of the organizational challenges related to COVID-19.  

Item 4 Financial Reports
Mr. Means presents the October 2021 financials. Mr. Doering summarizes variances on the REEF reports.  
Broadway Shoppes tenants are making timely rent and utility payments.  Meter revenues were under budget 

2



Lexington & Fayette County Parking Authority               
859-233-PARK (7275)      
www.lexpark.org

    

for the month and Mr. Means notes that the month was overbudgeted.  Bank and credit card fees are over 
budget due to increased volume.  Total expenses are close to budget.  On the year, LPA is $215,000 ahead of 
budget.   Mr. Means references the new depreciation budget.  Ms. Vertuca makes a motion to approve the FY 
2021 Audit, and the July 2021, August 2021, September 2021, and October 2021 financial reports.  Mr. Pettit 
seconds.  The vote was unanimous and the motion carried.

Item 5 Approve 2022 Calendar
Mr. Ball makes a motion to approve the 2022 Board Meeting calendar.  Ms. Vertuca seconds.  The vote was 
unanimous, and the motion carried. 

Item 6 Adopt new LFUCG Holidays
official 

holidays.  Meters are free on all LFUCG holidays and LPA staff follow the LFUCG employee calendar.  By 
consensus, the Commissioners agree.

Item 7 On-Street
A. Curbside Pick Up Spaces/Outdoor Expansion Areas
Mr. Means presents the need to have a program for Pick Up/Drop Off at metered spaces.  After discussion of 
all options, Mr. Ball makes a motion to approve a one-year pilot program with 75% discount off meter bagging 
rates for restaurants and retail establishments.  Ms. Harbut seconds.  The vote was unanimous, and the 
motion carried.

Item 8 Off-Street 
A.  Garage Updates
Mr. Trammell presents the garage updates.  Many lighting schemes were programmed for the various holidays and 
sporting events.  A new company has been engaged to provide a quote to fabricate and install new stairs in the 
Transit Center.  Mr. Ball suggests more ventilation in the Transit Center stairwells and Mr. Trammell will pursue the 
possibility.  

B.  Security Updates
Mr. Means is working with the Sheriff Department to provide security services in the Transit Center Garage.  
Additionally, cameras are being installed in the elevators.  

Item 9 Downtown Lexington Partnership Updates
Mr. Sweeney reports that the official tree lighting and parade are complete.  The ice rink is benfiting from good 
weather.  DLP is working on new events for 2022.

Ms. Vertuca requests that the prior two Reef internal audits be presented at the next Board Meeting.  

Ms. Vertuca makes a motion to enter closed session pursuant to KRS 61.810.  Mr. Ball seconds.

Mr. Ball makes a motion to exit closed session.  Ms. Vertuca seconds.  The vote was unanimous, and the 
motion carried.

There being no further business brought before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 11:30AM.

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10







        













 

      

     









1111



12



13



14



15



16



      

FOOD for FINES By the Numbers   

      

  Cites Paid  T. Items Pounds Oldest Value 

      

*2014               609          6,200       6,000  6yr 2mos  $        14,580  

      

2015               525       10,000     10,211    $        14,645  

      

2016               399          8,387       8,074    $        13,065  

      

2017               379          7,630       8,431  11yr 3mos  $        11,500  

      

2018               268          7,367       6,057  4yr 6mos  $        10,765  

      

*2019               392          9,594       8,828  6yr 4mos  $        14,240  

      

2020               162          4,080       4,612  6yr 8mos  $           5,885  

      

2021               174          3,679       3,931  7yr 6mos  $           5,265  

      

TOTALS           2,908       56,937     56,144     $        89,945  

      

      

* 2014 (1st yr) we only accepted payments for meter violations 

* 2019 using a $1,000 budget, we mailed F4F info. letters 

      
 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



Garage Updates

Garage & Pedway Lighting Schemes: 
 Blue and white for UK home basketball games  
 Red and green for Christmas Parade 
 Blue and silver for Hanukkah  
 Red and green for Christmas 
 Gold for New Year’s Eve 
 Standard daily multicolor scheme              

 
Transit Center Garage: 

 Everclear Enterprises was provided copies of the original construction drawings to verify both stair towers are 
identical before they will commit to pricing for the additional work of replacing both the East and West stair towers. 
As a reminder, the bid for the complete replacement of the East stair tower system was quoted for $172,500. The 
project will also involve the installation of a floor drain at level 1, which will allow for easier pressure washing and 
cleaning of the stair tower. 

 Everclear Enterprises has found a new fabricator located in North Carolina for the aluminum stair system and LPA 
is expecting an update on pricing and scheduling.  

 Everclear Enterprises completed repairs and reinforcement of 16 locations in both the East and West towers. The 
repairs involved installing new steel reinforcement plates at each location and the application of sealant to any 
voids between existing panels and adjoining concrete surfaces. During the project, three of the most corroded 
stair treads failed, requiring the installation of new concrete treads. The final cost of the repairs totaled $11,700.   
 

  
                                       Before                                                                            After 
 

Courthouse Garage: 
 LPA contacted the AOC regarding reimbursement for 2021 capital repairs that were previously negotiated in 

2018. The total reimbursement amount for item 7.3 Joint Sealant Replacement (related to the East and West 
facade masonry repairs) and item 10.7 Replace Corroded Door Frame (located in the secure garage area) is 
$46,500.  
The AOC mistakenly sent the reimbursement to LFUCG but has since redirected payment to LPA.  Unfortunately, 
the reimbursement amount was incorrect, and LPA notified the AOC of the mistake.  A new check in the correct 
amount is being reissued by AOC.     

 
General Garage Notes: 
 

 LPA hosted a call with WP Moore regarding the scope for the upcoming FY22 repair and maintenance bid 
package. The decision to replace both stair towers at the Transit Center Garage during the current fiscal year 
required a reevaluation of the planned MEP repairs to remain within the $1M CAMP budget for FY22. WP Moore 
has been instructed to keep the revised scope within a budget of $600,000. Repair items planned for the 
proposed FY22 CAMP bid package currently include the replacement of electrical panels and disconnects at the 
Helix garage, new energy efficient rooftop lighting systems for the Helix and Transit Center garages, and storm 
drainage system repairs in all garages.  

 p 

30




